
1 

 

 
 

 

GREENE COUNTY FARMLAND PRESERVATION BOARD 

MINUTES 

JANUARY 25, 2010 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Cree at 7:13 p.m. at the 

Mezzanine Conference Room, 19 South Washington St., Waynesburg, 

Pennsylvania.  Directors present were William Cree III, Chairman; Dave 

Shipman, Vice Chairman; Rick Thistlethwaite, Treasurer; Charlie Day, 

Director; Corbly Orndoff, Director; and Dave Shipman, Director.  Guests and 

staff in attendance in alphabetical order were Cheryl Cowen, County Solicitor; 

Robbie Matesic, Executive Director, Economic Development; Lisa Snider, 

Assistant District Manager/Watershed Specialist; Archie Trader, 

Commissioner; and Tracy Zivkovich, Director, Human Resources. 

 

II. REORGANIZATION 

 

Election of Officers 

 

Chairman Cree began the meeting with the Election of Officers.  By 

appointment, Ms. Matesic stated that Mr. Cree is the current Chairman.  Mr. 

Cree said that other personal commitments have made it necessary for him to 

relinquish that position.   He offered his assistance in moving the Petery Farm 

forward and said that this will most likely be his last meeting.  Others offered 

their regrets and Ms Matesic also said that this board is different, in that the 

Commissioners appoint the Chairman.  Members of the board offered to 

change the meeting date to better suit Mr. Cree.   A motion was made by 

Dave Shipman to suspend the reorganization until the next 

meeting.  Charlie Day seconded.   (Motion Passed).  This and a 

meeting schedule will be considered at the next meeting. 

  

Greene County Farmland Preservation 

Fort Jackson Building, Mezzanine 

19 South Washington Street 

Waynesburg, PA 15370 
724-852-5278 



2 

 

 

 

I. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

A motion was made by Dave Shipman to enter into Executive 

Session to discuss a personnel issue.  Jim Willis seconded.  

(Motion Passed)   
 

II. RECONVENMENT 

 

A motion was made by Rick Thistlethwaite to reconvene the 

meeting.  Corbly Orndoff seconded.  (Motion Passed) 
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

There were no public comments. 

 

IV. REPORTS FROM COOPERATING AGENCIES AND GUESTS 

 

There were no reports. 

 

V. DISCUSSION OF STAFF REPORTS 

 

Lisa reported that she delivered a deposit to York Reality for the Petery 

appraisal.  She had previously sent them information from the easement.  Mr. 

York reviewed the information and will get back to her if additional 

information is needed.  Robbie said that in the future they will have reports 

from the Conservation District and her department. 

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A motion was made by Charlie Day to approve the minutes of 

the December meeting.  Jim Willis seconded.  (Motion Passed) 
 

VII. TREASURER’S REPORT 

 

It was noted that a correction is needed on the Treasurer’s Report.  Lisa 

explained that when Laurel and she were going over previous minutes, they 

found a $50.00 typing mistake was carried over.  She provided a spreadsheet 

with the correct balance of $924.25.  A motion was made by Dave 

Shipman to accept the $50.00 correction and Rick 

Thistlethwaite seconded.  (Motion Passed).   
 



3 

 

Lisa noted that the correction was not made on the agenda and therefore the 

$50.00 needs to be subtracted from the balance.  Treasurer Thistlethwaite 

continued by reading the Treasurer’s Report as follows.  

 

Opening Balance                                        $974.25 

Deposits                                                          $0.00 

Withdrawals                                                   $0.00 

Closing Balance with Correction            $924.25 

     

A motion was made by Corbly Orndoff to accept the 

Treasurer’s Report with the correction.  Charlie Day 

seconded.  (Motion Passed) 

 
VIII. CORRESPONDENCE 

 

There was no Correspondence discussed. 

 

IX. OLD BUSINESS 

 

Petery Easement 

 

Robbie discussed the Petery Farm status.  She said that the Quit Claim Deed 

was received on December 21
st
 and that it has been recorded.  A package of 

information was mailed it to the Bureau of Farmland Preservation (BFP) on 

December 31
st
. Although the package was incomplete, the BFP is accepting 

this and future submissions, as the easement progresses.  

 

Next, she reported on the appraisal by stating that Scott York modified his 

proposal to the Board by referencing the BFP guidelines.  He also clarified the 

terms and conditions for payment and the date he would have the appraisal 

completed.   He is requesting $1,000.00 up front and the remaining $1,000.00 

within so many days of completion.   Robbie said that Lisa spoke to Mr. York 

last week and he has committed to completing the appraisal by February 14th.  

She also said that the Petery’s have requested that they be given a 24 hour 

notice before he enters the property. 

 

Robbie and Lisa spoke to Doug Wolfgang, BFP Director, and told him that 

the appraisal report would be completed by February 14
th

 and he extended his 

graciousness.  He sees that considerable effort has been put forth to move the 

easement this far and we are not being held to a specific deadline.  He asks 

that we keep them apprised of progress. 

 

Robbie also said that as soon as the appraisal is completed, we will need to 

make the Petery’s an offer which may make it necessary to reschedule the 

next meeting, in the event the appraisal is delayed.  Chairman Cree thought 

that we could schedule a meeting within 24 hours of notice.  After discussion, 



4 

 

the board decided to tentatively schedule a meeting for February 15
th

 at 6:00 

p.m. with an alternate date of the 17
th

.  The Petery’s will be notified of the 

next meeting. 

 

Regarding the survey, there are some corrections needed for closure. It’s our 

understanding that Mr. Mankey had surveyed the property but now Kissy 

Davin has all of his files.  Cheryl Cowen explained that as part of the title 

search, the closure is reviewed.  She said that sometimes what happens is that 

if it doesn’t close by a certain percentage, then the surveyor can justify the 

percentage of error, in writing.  This is common practice.  Mr. Davin has 

explained that the Petery meets and bounds are within a normal range of error, 

so a document can be written, stating such, to satisfy the FLP requirements.  

She said that is what we are hoping, as opposed to having a new boundary 

survey done, which would be expensive. The board asked who would have to 

accept that opinion and Cheryl said that would be Greg Hook, the FLP and 

herself.  She explained that she and Mr. Hook would have to certify title and 

the FLP would have to accept it.  She also said that she received Mr. Hook’s 

title search, reviewed it and she is comfortable with it.   She said that since she 

and the Commissioners will be signatory, she had to be comfortable with the 

survey, even considering that it doesn’t close.  Robbie asked when we would 

need the document from Mr. Davin.  Cheryl did not know and said that Mr. 

Hook actually talked to Mr. Davin and that he would have no problem writing 

the explanation.  She said that many properties don’t close with the way old 

surveys were done and she doesn’t think that will be a problem. 

 

The next item discussed was the title survey that has been completed by Greg 

Hook.  Robbie said that Doug Wolfgang has requested a copy of it.  Robbie 

verified that the document from Mr. Davin would have to be completed to 

proceed.  Cheryl is uncertain of how much Mr. Davin will charge. 

 

Robbie clarified that Mr. Hook will also create the title commitment according 

to the guidelines and assure the survey closure statement is acceptable.  

Cheryl indicated that Mr. Hook will not do his part until he receives the 

document indicating that all the descriptions are correct.  Cheryl also said that 

when she spoke to Mr. Hook last week, he was unaware of the Quit Claim 

Deed and that she will see that he receives a copy of it. 

 

Cheryl said that the Appraisal is the most important item to complete so that 

additional money is not invested, without some assurance that the figure is 

acceptable to the landowner.  Mr. Trader suggested that the board be kept 

informed of the completion of items.    

 

After discussion, a motion was made by Jim Willis to move 

forward with the appraisal.  Rick Thistlthewaite seconded.  

(Motion Passed) 
 



5 

 

Action on the survey will be taken at the next meeting. 

 

Next, Robbie discussed the financial report stating that there are Certified 

Funds ($12,500) from the Commissioners that have accrued for the period of 

2007-2010 and have been reported to the Bureau.  The Clean and Green Fund 

has contributed $8,000 and the Conservation District had contributed $2,500.  

She explained that the Bureau asks the County to certify these funds for 

purchase of the easements only and does not cover administrative costs. 

 

She went on to explain that she believes the FPB expects the Petery easement 

to draw down a portion of these county funds, which puts the county in a role 

of owning a pro-rated share of the easement.  She said that this is different 

from the Cree Easement, as it’s owned entirely by the Commonwealth.  She 

also said that this is the first easement the current Farmland Preservation 

Board has done in which the county will own a portion.   It will require a 

change in the Sales Agreement that was sent to FLP at the end of December, 

2009 and Cheryl is modifying that language.  Robbie said that since this is a 

real estate transaction, it will be on the agenda of the Board of Commissioners 

at different times, and during the interim, they will be briefed.   The  

Sales Agreement will ultimately be signed by the Petery’s, the Farmland 

Preservation Board, and Cheryl Cowen, on behalf of the Board of 

Commissioners, and the FPB.  So, the revised Sales Agreement will be 

submitted to the FPB in advance, for their review and comment.   

 

Robbie stated that the Greene County Conservation District (GCCD) board is 

meeting tomorrow and, if everyone agrees, she suggests that they be asked to 

set aside money for the Farmland Preservation Board, to cover the cost of the 

appraisal, etc.  She also said that the GCCD board members have been polled 

and there should not be a problem.  Chairman Cree explained that the last time 

all the administrative fees were eventually reimbursed.   Lisa explained that 

reimbursements are only made if the farm easement is completed.  If it is not 

completed, or if the landowner drops out, this money could be lost.  Cheryl 

wanted to make sure everyone understands this point.   Robbie added that this 

was explained to the GCCD Board members and they have expressed the will 

to take that risk.  After discussion, a motion was made by Dave 

Shipman to ask the Conservation District to “front” $5,000 for 

the appraisal, etc.  Charlie Day seconded.  (Motion Passed) 

 
      Future Easements 

 

The next item of business discussed was the Milesky easement.  This farm 

encompasses 3 or 4 tracts.  Lisa said that all the soil reports were completed.  

Robbie asked if all the tracts would be eligible and Chairman Cree said that 

they should all be eligible, but the Board may not have enough purchase 

easements on all of the tracts.  Once the Petery appraisal is completed, they 

will make an offer and there may not be a whole lot left over. 



6 

 

 

Robbie and Cheryl discussed completing the appraisal first, before the title 

search is invested in. Cheryl explained that title issues are eventually resolved, 

so it’s the appraisal that is more likely to be the deal breaker.  This way the 

Board would know upfront whether to proceed before costs are incurred for 

the title search, attorney fees, etc.    Chairman Cree expressed some concern 

because of the applicant’s $1,500 contribution and that (conducting the 

appraisal first) may not be consistent with the Board’s By-Laws and the BFP 

Guidelines.  Mr. Cree said that in the Petery’s case, if the title search had not 

been completed, they would not have known about the mineral rights.  He 

further questioned that a title search would prevent potential problems with 

property owned by more than one person.  Chairman Cree also expressed 

belief that it’s unlikely that interested applicants get in this program for the 

money, but to keep the farm in the farming community.  Cheryl agreed that 

when farmers apply for the program, they know upfront that they won’t 

receive nearly enough. 

 

Returning to the topic of the next easement, Robbie suggested that the staff 

meet with Mr. Milesky.  She explained that previous meeting minutes indicate 

that Mr. Milesky applied last February.  The board explained that he applied 

and that there is only one open period when applications are accepted. 

 

Robbie also discussed the Washington Township Ag Security Area and asked 

if they should solicit to see if others are interested.  Upon board authorization, 

a solicitation could be done.  The board said that the application period has 

ended and will reopen in November, but a solicitation could be done and a list 

started.  The board suggested that we contact Mr. Spaulding.  

 

Lisa reported that she received an inquiry from Glodenna Hofstead who is 

also interested in the program.  Lisa will follow-up.  

 

Cheryl recommended that we determine early on whether the entire farm or 

certain tracts will be put in to an easement.  She said that would make the title 

search easier and less expensive.  Chairman Cree said that usually what 

happens is that an applicant will submit multiple tracts and one will rank high 

while the others do not, but if there is enough money, the whole farm could be 

done. 

 

Robbie said that they will follow up with Mr. Milesky, Mr. Spaulding and Ms. 

Hofstead and give a report at the next meeting. 

 

The next meeting will be advertised as the Reorganization Meeting on 

February 15
th

 with an alternative date of the 17
th

. 

 



7 

 

Commissioner Trader requested to speak and said that with respect to 

Cheryl’s advice, he wants to assure that the Board complies with all necessary 

steps, in proper sequence, every single time with no exceptions. 

    

The last item of business discussed was the banking.  Pending approval by the 

GCCD Board members on the $5,000 allocation, a checking account will be 

opened at First Federal.  The account will require two signatures, that of the 

Treasurer and Chairman or the Chairman and Vice Chairman.  Bonding 

requirements were also discussed and Robbie said that they will coordinate 

everything with Gene Lee, the Controller’s office and check with Chuck Baily 

so that they will be prepared to report at the next meeting. 

 

On a motion by Charlie Day, the meeting was adjourned at 

8:25 p.m.  Dave Shipman seconded.  (Motion Passed) 

 

Transcribed from Meeting Tape By, 

 

 

                              Rebecca K. Salosky 

    Fiscal Officer 

 

 

  
                             


